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U.S. DISTRI6T COU.R’["
This is an action under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title I of the Czvilt~ights

Act of 1991, to correct unlawful employment practices on the basis of sex, and to provide appropriate

relief to Anna Brooks, who was adversely affected by such practices. The EEOC alleges that

Defendant, Victory Lane, ("Defendant" or "Victory") subjected Brooks to a sexually hostile work

environment and that the Defendant, despite knowledge of the harassment, failed to take prompt and

effective action to correct and prevent the harassment.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 451,1331, 1337, 1343,

and 1345. This action is authorized and instituted pursuant to Sections 706(t)(1) and (3) of Title VII

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000e-5(f)(1) and (3) ("Title VII"), and

Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act of 1991, 42 U.S.C. § 1981a, 28 U.S.C. §§ 451, 1331, 1337, 1343



and 1345.

2. The employment practices alleged to be unlawful were and are now being committed

within the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan,

Southern Division.

3. Plaintiff, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, ("EEOC" or the

"Commission") is the agency of the United States of America charged with the administration,

interpretation and enforcement of Title VII, and is expressly authorized to bring this action by Section

706(0(1) and (3) of Title VII, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e-5(f)(1) and (3).

4. At all relevant times, Defendant, Victory Lane, has continuously been a corporation

doing business in Ypsilanti, Michigan, and has continuously had at least 101-200 employees.

5. At all relevant times, Defendant Employer has continuously been an employer engaged

in an industry affecting commerce within the meaning of Sections 701(b), (g), and (h) of Title VII,

42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e(b), (g), and (h).

STATEMENT OF CLAIMS

6. More than thirty (30) days prior to the institution of this lawsuit, Anna Brooks, filed

a charge with the Commission alleging violations of Title VLI by Defendant Employer. All conditions

precedent to the institution of this lawsuit have been fulfilled.

7. Since at least May of 2003, Defendant Employer has engaged in unlawful employment

practices at its Ypsilanti, Michigan facility, in violation of Section 703(a), 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2(a).

The unlawful employment practices include, but are not limited to, the following five incidents

during the month of May 2003:

a. Will Roberts created a hostile work environment for Brooks beginning in May
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2003. On or about May 2003, Roberts came up behind her and tickled her

back and sides. Brooks told him to stop and tried to leave but Roberts blocked

the doorway, wrapped his arms around her and tried to kiss her neck. Roberts

then put his face between Brook’s breasts.

b.    On or about May 2003, Brooks was in the office at closing time and Roberts

asked her for a kiss. Brooks said no and tried to leave but Roberts grabbed

her, pushed her back into a comer and tried to put his face in her breasts.

c.    On another occasion in 2003, Roberts moved his hands from Brooks arms to

herbreasts and she told him to stop. Roberts tl~en pushed his body against her

and started rubbing the front of her pants.

d.    On or about May 2003, Roberts pushed Brooks into the back wall of the

bathroom and started grabbing her breasts and groping her butt. Brooks yelled

for him to stop.

e.    Defendants, having knowledge of the harassment by Roberts, failed to take

effective corrective action to end the harassment and prevent if from recurring.

8. The effect of the unlawful conduct complained of in paragraph 7, above, has been to

deprive the Brooks ofequai employment opportunities and otherwise adversely affect her status as

an employee because of her sex, female.

9. The unlawful employment practices complained of in paragraph 7, above, were and

are intentional.

10. The unlawful employment practices complained of in paragraph 7, above, were done

with malice or with reckless indifference to the federally protected rights of Brooks.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, the Commission respectfully requests that this Court:

A.    GRANT a permanent injunction enjoining Defendant Employer, its officers,

successors, assigns, and all persons in active concert or participation with it, from engaging in sexual

’harassment and any other employment practice wl~ieh discriminates on the basis of sex;

B. ORDER Defendant Employer to institute and carry out policies, practices, and

programs which provide equal employment opportunities for women, and which eradicate the effects

of its past and present unlawful employment practices;

C.    ORDER. Defendant Employer to provide training on Title VII of the Civil Rights

Act of 1964, as amended, and its prohibitions against sexual harassment to all of its employees at its

Victory Lane of Ypsilanti, Michigan facility and its human resources department;.

D.    ORDER. Defendant Employer to make whole Anna Brooks by providing appropriate

monetary relief, in the form of compensatory damages in the amounts to be proven at trial;

E. ORDER Defendant Employer to pay Anna Brooks punitive damages for its malicious

or reckless conduct described in paragraph 7, above, in amounts to be proven at trial;

interest; and

I.

GRANT such further rclief as the Court deems necessary and proper in the public

AWARD the Commission its costs for tl~is action.
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JURY TRIAL DEMAND

The Commission requests a jury trial on all questions of fact raised by its Complaint.

Rcspectfully submitted,

DATED: May 28, 2004

ERIC S. DILEIBAND
General Counsel

JAMES N. LEE
Deputy General Counsel

ADELE RAPPORT ~/P~4833)
Regional Attorney

ROBERT K. DAWIed’NS (P38289)
Supervisory Trial Attomey

TRINA MENGESHA (P59458)
Trial Attorney

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
COMMISSION
DETROIT DISTRICT OFFICE
Patrick V. McNamara Building
477 Michigan Avenue, Room 865
Detroit, Michigan 48226
Telephone: (313)226-5673
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